ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 28, 2005
1:34 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Charlie Huggins, Chair
Senat or John Cowdery, Vice Chair
Senat or CGene Therri aul t

Senat or Al bert Kookesh

Senator Hollis French

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COWM TTEE CALENDAR
SENATE BILL NO 183
"An Act relating to encroachnents in the right-of-way of
hi ghway. "
MOVED CSSB 183(TRA) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 183
SHORT TI TLE. OUTDOOR ADVERTI SI NG ENCROACHVENTS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) HUGG NS

04/ 20/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 20/ 05 (S) TRA, FIN
04/ 28/ 05 (S) TRA AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Ms. Deborah Grundman, Legislative A de
Staff to Senator Charlie Huggins

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 183

Ms. Debbi e Gssi ander
Anchor age School Board
Muni ci pality of Anchorage
PO Box 196650

Anchorage, AK 99519

a

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- April 28, 2005



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 183

M. John Macki nnon, Deputy Comm ssi oner
Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities
3132 Channel Dr.

Juneau, AK 99801-7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 183

Representative M ke Hawker

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 183

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
CHAIR CHARLIE HUGA NS called the Senate Transportation Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:34:03 PM present were Senators
Hol lis French, John Cowdery and Chair Charlie Huggins.

SB 183- QUTDOOR ADVERTI SI NG ENCROACHVENTS

CHAI R HUGE NS announced SB 183 was up for consideration.

SENATOR COWDERY noved Version \Y as the working docunment before
the conmttee. Hearing no objections, the notion carried.

V5. DEBORAH GRUNDVANN, staff to Senator Charlie Huggins,
introduced SB 183 and inforned the commttee it would allow the
Department of Transportation and Public Facilities under certain
condi tions to gr ant encr oachnent permts, whi ch woul d
grandfather in people with existing encroachnents so |long as
they do not affect road construction.

V5. DEBBI E OSSI ANDER, nenber, Anchorage Assenbly, testified in
support of SB 183. The Assenbly is concerned w th encroachnent
issues in the reconstruction of the AOd denn H ghway Renewal
Project especially with regards to the Anchorage Fire Depart nent
and the community of Chugi ak.

SENATOR CONDERY asked whether the bill would affect construction
of the gas pipeline.

1:39: 21 PM

VR, JOHN  MACKI NNON, Deput y Comm ssi oner, Depart nent of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF), said the gas

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- April 28, 2005



pipeline, as a utility, would not fall wunder the purview of SB
183.

1:40: 28 PM
CHAI R HUGGE NS asked the length of the permt.

MR.  MACKINNON responded the permt would be issued for five
years.

SENATOR FRENCH shared Senator Cowdery's concern regarding
encroachnents near the construction of the gas pipeline since
the line will follow the highway.

Senat or Kookesh and Senator Therriault joined the commttee at
1:43:59 PM

VR. MACKINNON informed the comrittee SB 183 deals wth
encroachnents that exist at the tine that the act is signed into
law. There is <concern there mght be a rush to place
encroachnents before the act is signed so an anendnent has been
suggested, which would establish retroactive data to address

that. The bill would not guarantee that encroachnents would be
permtted.
CHAIR HUGA NS said the bill provides a nechanism that would

allow people to talk to the DOT about their encroachnents to
determ ne whether or not they are all owed.

1.47.:45 PM

SENATOR FRENCH asked whether an encroachnent was considered
anything that is in the right-of-way. He asked if the inpetus
of the bill was only the reconstruction of the Ad d enn H ghway
of if there were other simlar issues throughout the state.

MR.  MACKI NNON responded the bill is not specific to the Ad
G enn Highway. Encroachnents are things such as easenents,
garages, driveways, and decks. Mailboxes are allowed w thout a
permt so long as they are built to certain specifications.

1:50: 12 PM
CHAI R HUGGE NS asked the process for encroachnent consideration

MR. MACKI NNON expl ained the DOT surveys the entire right-of-way
and they require people to renove all encroachnents or apply for
a permt to allow their encroachnent to remain.

1: 51: 45 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- April 28, 2005



SENATOR THERRI AULT asked fee rate of the permt and whether is
woul d be transferable.

MR, MACKI NNON answered the permt would have to be renewed when
the property transferred. The fee is $100 for the permt.
Presently there are a nunber of encroachnent permts statew de,
nostly for comrercial purposes. There was a recent ruling saying
the DOl cannot collect rent on easenents to residential
property. The DOT suggested a second anmendnent.

CHAIR HUGGE NS noved Amendnent 1. Hearing no objections, the
notion carri ed.

AMENDMENTI1

As 19.25.105(d)(2) and AS 19.25.200(c) delete “on the
effective date of this Act” and insert “existed as of
January 1, 2005, and”.

CHAI R HUGE NS npved Anendnent 2.

AMENDMENT 2

Add a new subsection (g):

The state is not liable for damage to, or danage or
injury resulting from the presence of, and encroachnment in
the right-of-way of a state highway.

SENATOR FRENCH obj ected for the purpose of discussion. He said
that there seens to be a difference between nenorials and
encroachnents in that encroachnents could be nore substanti al
Before giving the state immnity, this should be consi dered.

MR. MACKINNON said as an attorney he appreciates the work the
DOT engineers put into the analysis of encroachnents. They
conpetently analyze the |evel of hazard presented by an
encroachnment when they evaluate the permt request.

2:01:40 PM

SENATOR FRENCH suggested the anendnent be narrowed to address
the concern. He suggested exenpting the state for a negligent
deci sion but not for gross negligence.

2:02:40 PM

MR, MACKI NNON added a permt goes through nunerous steps and
signoffs and approvals. There are nunerous people who view the
permt request to ensure gross negligence does not occur.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- April 28, 2005



SENATOR FRENCH r enoved hi s objection.
Hearing no further objections, Arendnent 2 was adopt ed.

V. SUSAN  GORSKY, executive director, Chugi ak  Assenbl y,
testified in support of SB 183.

2:04.:01 PM
CHAIR HUGA NS asked Ms. Gorsky whether the Fire Departnent was
i npacted by the reconstruction of the Ad G enn H ghway.

M5. GORSKY responded yes.

M5. FRANCI S JACOBS, cabin owner, Odd denn H ghway, testified
she has trouble renting her cabin due to |ack of parking because
her parking | ot has been excluded by the DOI. She asked what she
coul d do.

2:07:12 PM
CHAIR HUGA NS infornmed SB 183 would allow her to apply for a
permt.

M5. LINDA KOVAK, nenber, Chugiak Comunity Council Board,
testified in support of SB 183. She described the current
upgrades that are being constructed on the Add denn H ghway and
the current DOT regulations pertaining to encroachnents on the
hi ghway. She described the negative inpacts that current
practices have upon property owners |iving near the proposed
i nprovenents. SB 183 would alleviate the inpacts.

2:11:18 PM

M5. DI XIE WANDELL testified nost of the parking space for her
business is in the right-of-way of the dd Genn H ghway. If SB
183 were to pass it wuld allow her to maintain the parking
space for her business. She nentioned elenents of her conmunity
that woul d benefit fromthe | egislation.

2:15:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER testified he has right-of-way issues
in his district particularly with respect to comunities and
buildings that were constructed before the highway existed.
Federal right-of-way standards require sone parts of these
bui l di ngs to be denolished even though they do not pose a threat
to drivers on the highway.

2:18:56 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- April 28, 2005



CHAIR HUGE NS advised the commttee does not want to create a
burden on the DOI. He asked M. WMacki nnon whether SB 183 woul d
cause undue hardship for the departnent.

MR MACKI NNON answer ed al though his staff does not entirely agree
with the bill overall it is reasonable. The permtting required
by this bill would place a small burden on the departnent since
it would involve a thorough investigation and anal ysi s.

CHAIR HUGA NS envisioned the bill would apply primarily to old
comunities and to buildings in the right-of-way of ngjor
proj ects. He said given the federal requi renents he is
confortable with the | egislation.

2:24.36 PM

SENATOR FRENCH saw SB 183 as requiring the DOT to review every
possi bl e encroachnment. He asked whether it was in the interest
of the DOT to have that requirement in |egislation.

M . Macki nnon suggested renoving the first sentence in Section 2
subsection (d).

SENATOR THERRI AULT believed Senator French’'s suggestion to be
| ogi cal and woul d al so reduce the fiscal note.

CHAIR HUGA NS noved to adopt conceptual Anmendnent 3. Hearing no
obj ections, the notion carried.

SENATOR KOOKESH asked how the state statute overrides the very
strict and explicit | anguage of the federal requirenents.

MR. MACKINNON replied there are provisions that give the state a
certain amount of |eeway. Federal |aw does not preclude the
| anguage of the statute. It has not been DOT practice to approve
encroachnents but it mght be in the interest of the state to
change that policy in some instances.

2:37:03 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT said Anmendnent 3 should be referenced in the
public notice statute. He wondered whether doing so could affect
the fiscal note attached to the bill

2:40: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said he could not imgine 500 citizens
paying $100 for an encroachnment permt but citizens with a
direct financial interest would apply.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- April 28, 2005



MR. MACKINNON said SB 183 is worth the benefits that it wll
create in ternms of public relations.

SENATER THERRI AULT noved CSSB 183(TRA) out of commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recomendati ons and attached fiscal notes. The nption
carried w thout objection.

There being no further business to conme before the conmttee,
Chair Huggi ns adjourned the neeting at 2:44:19 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- April 28, 2005



